ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 3, 2005
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriaul t

Senator Hollis French

Senat or Gretchen GQuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 84

"An Act relating to the confidentiality of investigations, court
heari ngs, and public agency records and information in child-in-
need-of-aid matters and certain <child protection nmatters;
relating to immunity regarding disclosure of information in
child-in- need-of-aid mtters and certain child protection
matters; anending Rules 3 and 22, Alaska Child in Need of Aid
Rul es of Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 84(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 84

SHORT TI TLE: CHI LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD, FIN

02/ 07/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( HES)

02/ 09/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 09/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 84(HES) Qut of Committee
02/ 09/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( HES)

02/ 14/ 05 (S) HES RPT CS 4DP 1NR SAME TI TLE
02/ 14/ 05 (S) DP: DYSON, ELTON, WLKEN, GREEN
02/ 14/ 05 (S) NR. OLSON

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 3, 2005



02/ 23/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 23/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 24/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 24/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 24/ 05 (S) M NUTE (JUD)

03/ 02/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 02/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 02/ 05 (S) M NUTE (JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Dianne d sen

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 84

Ms. Marci e Kennai

Department of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 84

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at. 9:01:46 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

SB 84- CH LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY

9:01:46 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS announced SB 84 to be up for review He advised
the commttee there is a new fiscal note from the Public
Def enders Agency. He announced that Dianne O son was on line to
answer questions, and clarified the commttee was working from
version \Y.

9:03:41 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked Senator French if he wanted to propose an
anendnent .

SENATOR FRENCH advi sed after talking to the Departnent of Law,
he | earned there are good reasons to have the file closed after
the open court proceedings. He agreed wth Senator QGuess’s
previ ous suggestion to provide a sunset so that the commttee
could revisit the legislation to see howit is working.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 3, 2005



SENATOR HUGA NS noved to adopt Version \Y as the working
docunent. There being no objection, the notion carried.

9: 06: 26 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS advised the commttee that Version \Y redrafts the
i munity cl ause.

SENATOR FRENCH said he researched imunity sections in Title 9
and the | anguage in Version \Y is acceptable.

9:07: 38 AM
Senator Therriault joined the commttee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether there was a statutory
definition for the municipal agencies or enployees and, if so,
whet her it includes school officials or district enployees.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. Di anne O son to comment.
9:09: 32 AM

M5. DI ANNE OLSON, senior attorney, Anchorage Attorney General’s
Ofice, answered that AS 47.10.093 refers to information in
social records pertaining to the mnor prepared by enployees of
the state and munici pal agencies. She did not see any definition
that would relate to a borough

CHAI R SEEKINS asked Ms. d son whether a school district was a
subdi vi sion of the state.

M5. OLSON answered she would get back to the commttee.

CHAIR SEEKINS commented the State of Al aska has subdivisions
that include boroughs and cities. He asked whether school
districts were involved in Child In Need of Aid (CINA) cases.

M5. OLSON answered in sone instances children who are in CINA
cases are in school. Under the statutes DHSS has the ability to
share sone information with the schools. AS 47.10.093 ensures
the schools can provide counseling and allows them to provide
protection for the child.

9:11: 26 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. dson whether the intent would be
clearer if the commttee added |anguage to include the school

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 3, 2005



district or enployees because nunicipalities, cities, and
boroughs are subdivisions of the state; school districts are
not .

SENATOR THERRI AULT suggested the commttee deci de whether or not
school enployees should be included. After that they should
ensure the definition is clear.

9:13:29 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS commented there is a different theory as far as
liability is concerned. SB 84 proposes to indemify sonebody
fromliability for failure to disclose but it protects the state
enpl oyee and not the school district enployee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether school district enployees woul d
be i ncluded under SB 84.

CHAIR SEEKINS answered they are trusted wth confidential
information, and they <could be sued for not dissemnating
i nportant information.

SENATOR FRENCH said generally this type of information flows
uphill when it's a report of harm Then a CINA case is opened
and the information flows back. The comm ssioner or the
commi ssioner’s designee would decide whether to make certain
information available to the public. He said it 1is that
di sclosure or lack of disclosure that the conmittee would be
i ndemni fyi ng.

9:15: 15 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT agreed the information disclosure goes both
ways. He said he is not sure what information a state agency
woul d be expecting the school enployee to disclose.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked, “Wat if a principal didn't tell a teacher
inmportant information and a child was further harnmed as a
resul t?”

SENATOR FRENCH asked, “Do we want to indemmify that person?” The
committee needs to deternm ne how far down the line to extend the
i ndemmi fi cati on.

9:18: 00 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he is not sure it is advisable to hold
state agency personnel to a lesser standard than a school
enpl oyee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 3, 2005



CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATOR GUESS said in SB 84 a school enployee is never providing
information down line. It 1is +the state enployee who is
disclosing information. SB 84 doesn't deal wth the school
district side.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a short recess at 9:19: 14 AM

9:46: 17 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS reconvened the neeting. He referenced Section 14
and explained the intent is to allow the conm ssioner or the
commi ssioner’s designee to be able to release information in
defense of the actions of the state in a particular case. The
conmi ssi oner and designee are the indemified people.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that |anguage would solve a lot of
open-ended questi ons.

9:49: 59 AM
SENATOR GUESS proposed the adoption of anmendnent 1, which reads
as follows:

On page 8, line 18: delete “a nunicipality, or state
or nmunicipal agencies or enployees.” Insert “the
conmi ssi oner or the conm ssioner’s designee.”

CHAI R SEEKINS heard no objections so Amendnent 1 to Version \Y
was adopt ed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the difference between negligence and
gross negligence is a gray area. He asked if the commttee
shoul d delete the word “gross”.

CHAIR SEEKINS said the attorney has the onus to define the
di fference between negligence and gross negli gence.

9:51: 57 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS supported | eaving the word “gross” in

SENATOR FRENCH supported Senator Huggins and offered that the
jury should decide whether an action or non-action constituted
negl i gence or gross negligence.

SENATOR THERRI AULT wondered how negligent a person could be and
still be protected by inmunity.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 3, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS said SB 84 deals with the public dissem nation of
information. Immunity is only in Section 13, subsection (k).

9:54: 50 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the imunity clause in AS 47.10.094
(a) was limted to AS 47.10.093(k).

CHAIR SEEKINS said AS 47.10.094 applies only to the actions in
AS 47.10.093(k).

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Ms. dson if the commttee understood the
anmendnment correctly.

M5. OLSON agreed that the commttee understood the anmendnent
that said imunity is limted only to actions in Section 13,
subsection (k). She said the state’s tort attorney would like to
see the anendnent to include all of the downward disclosure
under AS 47.10.093 if the commttee could figure out to whomthe
di scl osures woul d go. She cautioned that there are possibilities
of m ssteps by state agencies.

CHAI R SEEKI NS countered that those are confidential disclosures,
not public disclosures.

M5. OLSON comrented under AS 47.10.093, DHSS mght be able to
di scl ose confidential information to a foster parent who is a
menber of the public, or to a governnental agency, or school
official for the purpose of providing counseling for the child.
There are circunstances where a person mght interpret the
statute to say a particular piece of information should not have
been dissem nated. There are a lot of areas for mstakes to be
made. It would be good to have that imunity pursued up to gross
negl i gence. M stakes can be nade when you have discretion with
regard to the kind of information that you are providing.

9:57: 49 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked Ms. dson the level of confidentiality the
peopl e she is tal ki ng about should be held to.

M5. OLSON answered they would be held to the sanme |evel of
confidentiality as the commssioner or the conm ssioner’s
desi gnee.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether a person who disclosed confidential
information to the public could be subject to action.

M5. OLSON answered yes, as referenced in another statute.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 3, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS said AS 47.10.094 would be anended to allow the
commi ssioner or the conmssioner’s designee the ability to
di scl ose confidential information to the public but only under
very special circunstances. He said he is not sure the conmttee
wanted to indemify soneone who is in the chain of
confidentiality for making public disclosure. People who are
allowed to pass on confidential information should be held to a
standard and not be given blanket imunity.

9:59: 13 AM

SENATOR GUESS said the question is on page 5, line 22, where
enpl oyees are making decisions about whether or not they shall
di sclose confidential information to a group of people. She

asked if the conmmttee should provide imunity to the state
enpl oyees who are nmaking decisions about whether or not to
di scl ose confidenti al i nformation, understanding that t he
enpl oyee coul d make the wong choice and cause harmto a child.

CHAIR SEEKINS said the state’s tort attorney would like to
address that particular issue. He suggested the commttee should
consider that issue in another piece of legislation. The
committee is trying to consider how to release confidential
information to the public. It was a good discussion point but
the commttee shouldn’t hold up SB 84 for that.

10: 00: 54 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for further discussion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the new section [AS 47.10.094 (a)]
creates a higher level of protection of inmunity than other
immunity clauses in the current statutes.

M5. OLSON answered that it is a fairly routine standard.

SENATOR FRENCH said he spent tinme looking at the immnity
sections of the current statutes and found AS 47.10.094 (a) to
be standard.

10: 02: 08 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for other discussion.

10: 02: 21 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS noved CSSB 84(JUD) from comrittee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and zero fiscal notes. Hearing no
obj ections, the notion carried.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 3, 2005



There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10:02:59 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 3, 2005



